
  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LYON 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MEETING MINUTES 
February 7, 2005 

 

Approved as submitted March 7, 2005. 

DATE:   February 7, 2005 

TIME:  7:00 PM 

PLACE:  58000 Grand River 

 

1. Call to Order:  Supervisor Young called the meeting to order at 7:03 PM. 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Roll Call:  Present: Lannie Young, Supervisor 

     Patricia Carcone, Treasurer 

     Pamela Johnson, Clerk 

     Dan Cash, Trustee 

     Brent Hemker, Trustee 

     John Hicks, Trustee 

     Troy Schilling, Trustee (arrived @ 7:30 PM) 

 

                   Also Present:  Philip Seymour, Township Attorney  

      Chris Olson, Township Superintendent 

      Chris Doozan, Township Planner 

      Leslie Zawada, Township Engineer 

      Loren Crandell, Township Engineer 

      Les Cash, Fire Chief 

      Larry Phillips, Building Official 

     

    Guests:  78 

 
4. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

  - Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of December 6, 2004 

  - Approval of Special Meeting Minutes of December 9, 2004 

  - Approval of Special Meeting Minutes of December 15, 2004 

  - Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of January 3, 2005 

  - Approval of Disbursements 

  - Financial Report for December, 2004 

  - Engineer Monthly Report 

  - Earth Tech WWTP Operations Report 

  - Monthly Department Reports (Fire, Zoning Officer, Building and Sheriff) 

  - Building Department Annual Report 

   

Some corrections were noted for the Recording Secretary to fix on the December 6, 2004 meeting  

minutes. 

 

Mr. Hicks made a motion to have the Board consider looking at the amount of bills that they are 

paying that just pass through cost and look at administration fees in dealing with the Engineers, 

Legal Council and Planners.  He suggested that this be placed on next month’s agenda.   

Mr. Hemker supported the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: Carcone, Cash, Hemker, Hicks, Young  

    Nays: Johnson 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 2 
 

            Absent: Schilling 

 

 Motion approved. 

 

Mr. Hicks made a motion to approve the consent agenda as amended.  Mr. Cash supported the 

motion. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Hicks, Cash, Carcone, Hemker, Johnson 

    Nays: None  

            Absent: Schilling 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
5.  ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 a.  Superintendent Announcement 

  

 Mr. Olson stated that Larry Phillips, Building Official, has submitted a letter of resignation, which 

 each Board member has a copy of in their packets.  He stated that Mr. Phillips will be pursuing 

 a business opportunity on Bois Blanc Island.  He thanked Mr. Phillips for his service to the 

 community and the organization. 

 
 b.  Supervisor Update on Videotaping Board Meetings 

 

 Mr. Young stated that they have been presented conceptual recommendations from two 

 different sources with regard to videotaping the meetings.  He stated that they have ordered 

 material to make a video room in the back of the meeting room.  He stated that they have a 

 good idea on the types of cameras and controllers that they need.  He stated that all that is  

 remaining now is to put all this information into a bid form and send it out for bid.   

 
 c.  Trustee Hicks – File of Life – CDBG Funds 

  

 Mr. Hicks questioned the status of the File of Life and the possibility of using CDBG Funds.  He stated 

 that he is not sure where it is at, but wanted to make sure that it does not fall between the cracks. 

 Mr. Doozan stated that now is the time to deal with this so that they can re-program CDBG Funds. 

 He indicated that he would get with Mr. Hicks to get the cost information. 

 

 Mr. Hicks stated that the South Lyon Herald did a nice write up on Bob Smith, Lyon Township 

 Firefighter, who was selected as Firefighter of the Year by his peers.  He congratulated Mr. Smith 

 for the outstanding job he has done. 

 

 Mr. Hicks stated that he has discovered that the Township does not have a SEMCOG delegate. 

 He stated that he feels that this is important because they do pay dues to this organization.  He 

 volunteered to be the delegate. 

 
 d.  Other Announcements 

 

 Mr. Crandell briefly discussed problems with the Arbors of Lyon pond and the effect it is having 

 on Roediger Estates.  He stated that he will be happy to meet with the residents to further  

 discuss this issue in the conference room. 

 

 Jeff Potter, Oakland County Commissioner, discussed resolution and cover letter that the Board 

 may have received regarding an issue that David Coulter and he have presented to the  State 

  Legislature.  He briefly explained what the resolution entails. 

 

 Ms. Carcone reminded the public that the last day to pay taxes is Monday, February 14, 2005.  She 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 3 
 

stated that if taxes are not paid by this date there will be a 3% penalty.  
 

6.   CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

 

Bob Hewlett, 59160 Annah Drive, expressed concern with the storm water run-off from Arbors of 

Lyon development into the Roediger Estates pond.  He noted that his sump pump was going 

off every two minutes.  He noted that he had to spend $180 for a back-up sump pump because 

his sump pump is running way too much.  He stated that in the nineteen years that he has lived  

here, this is the first time they have had a problem like this. 

 

Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, updated the Board on the light at Ten Mile Road and 

Martindale Road.  She discussed the many phone calls she has made to Oakland County with 

regard to the timing of the light and cars stacking in front of driveways on Martindale Road.  She  

also expressed concern with the Library cutting their hours of operation. 

 

Shawna Ritter, 59255 Pontiac Trail, discussed concerns with the storm water run-off.  She stated 

that she has read a letter from Oakland County which indicates that before construction can 

begin a permit must be issued.  She questioned if the developer pulled a permit.  She stated that 

she does not understand how this could have been approved with these open issues.  She also 

questioned when the Drain Commissioner signed off on this project. 

 

Robin Allen, 28550 Tindale Trail, questioned if the Township would be interested in trying to get 

something going for a Township wide roadside clean-up sometime this year.  He stated that the 

Township is looking pretty shabby and felt that they need to do something.   

 

Mr. Allen stated that at last month’s meeting a resident indicated that his comments were not 

included in the minutes.  He stated that at the April meeting he read a statement into the record, 

which was never put into the minutes.  He noted that there were other statements that were made 

that were put into the minutes. 

  
7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

 The following items were requested to be added to the agenda: 

  - Timber Trail Sanitary Sewer and Water Main SAD (New Business) 

  - Resolutions for the Eleven Mile Road Water and Sewer (New Business) 

  - Planning Commission Liaison (New Business) 

  - SEMCOG Delegate (New Business) 

 

 Ms. Carcone stated that she would like to have time to review items before they are added to the 

 agenda. 

 

 Ms. Carcone made a motion to approve the agenda with two additions only, the Planning  

Commission Liaison and SEMCOG Delegate.  Ms. Johnson supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Mr. Cash stated that in 2001 the Board has set a 

time table with regard to the cut off and the time that the Board members received their  

packets of information.  He stated that there is too much stuff that is being added to the agenda 

at every meeting.  He noted that the Board members don’t usually get their packets until late 

the Thursday or early on the Friday before the meetings.  Ms. Carcone concurred with Mr. Cash. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 

             Absent: Schilling 

 

  Motion approved. 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 4 
 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
 a.  Public Hearing for the Southwest Sanitary Sewer Improvements Proposed Special Assessment 

      District 
 

 Ms. Zawada, using a Power Point Presentation, reviewed and explained the map of the proposed  

SAD.  She also reviewed the estimated costs of the SAD. 

 

 Estimated Cost of Sewer $7,250,000.00  Estimated Cost of Water $2,900,688.00 

 REU’s                 1,748  REU’s     1,342 

 Cost of Sewer Per REU          4,147.97  Cost of Water Per REU          2,162.33 

 Capital Charge Per REU         8,256.87 

 Total Per REU               $    12,404.84  

 

 Mr. Cash made a motion to close the regular meeting and open a public hearing for the Southwest 

 Sanitary Sewer Improvements Proposed Special Assessment District.  Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 

 

  Motion approved. 

 

 John Hutto, 21580 Griswold Road, explained that his two parcels represent approximately 40% of  

 the district.  He stated that they would like to be part of this but if the Board is calling roll today,  

 they would have to opt out of the district.  He stated that their ducks will be in a row very shortly 

 and asked that the Board table this issue for 30 days.  He stated that at that time they will have a 

 better handle on where they are at. 

 

 Nick Mancinelli stated that he owns about 60 acres west of the Hutto property.  He stated that he 

 is in support of John Hutto’s request to table this issue on a temporary basis.   

 

 Charlie Hall, Cross of Christ Lutheran Church, stated that they originally wanted to be in the  

 program, but after holding a meeting yesterday, they have decided to opt out.  He stated that 

 they don’t have enough information and that the money is monumental.   

 

 Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, questioned if the residents along Ten Mile Road have to  

 participate.  Ms. Zawada responded that it is optional.  Ms. Hollon questioned if this would be a 

 hindrance if Ten Mile Road was ever widened.  Ms. Zawada responded that they are not that far 

 along in the design phase.  She stated that most of the time they try to design things like this  

 keeping in mind that there is always a possibility of road widening.   

 

 Jim Morris, 11321 Hammerstone, Green Oak, stated that he is a member of Cross of Christ Lutheran 

 Church and feels that this is being rushed into.  He stated that they have not had any chance to 

 look over the information that they have been provided.  He noted that this is a lot of money for a 

 church to come up with.  He concurred that this issue should be tabled to allow them more time. 

 

 David Goldberg, Aspen Group, stated that they are in support of a 30 day tabling.  He stated that 

 he does not support any significant slow down of the project.  He stated that they would like to see 

 things proceed at the speed that it has been.  He noted that they feel that Giffels-Webster have 

 done a wonderful job in getting information out.  He stated that they recognized the Church’s  

 concern, but the information has been out there for several years now. 

 

 Robert Terakis, 21725 Pontiac Trail, questioned how many people are opting out of this.  He stated 

 that his understanding that the drop dead date was January 27th.  Mr. Olson responded that  



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 5 
 

 January 27th was the date for people to let the Township know if they want to opt in so that they 

 could calculate the numbers.  He noted that tonight is the hearing for the necessity of the project 

 and not the hearing on the roll.   He stated that they have received three letters of opt outs and 

 one oral notification. 

 

 Nick Mancinelli questioned if the Hutto’s were to drop out after the 30 days, would there be 

 anything on Nine Mile Road or Pontiac Trail.   

 

 Mr. Olson asked the Chair if he could address both water and sewer at this time.  Mr. Young  

 indicated that he could.  Mr. Olson briefly discussed the route of the water and sewer using a 

 map, which he displayed.  He explained that this project would not work in smaller sections  

 because of the cost.  It works better as one whole project. 

 

 Mr. Mancinelli questioned if the Board tables this issue, would it be possible for him to get some  

 costs on a worse case scenario for this project.  Ms. Zawada stated that on a quick calculation, it 

 would be approximately $7,000, if the Hutto’s were not in the district. 

 

 John Hutto stated that his concerns is with the term of the SAD.  He stated that he would like to 

 know what the term is in years (ten, fifteen, twenty).  Mr. Olson responded that the number of  

 years have not yet been set.  He noted that he does not see any reason why it could not be set 

 at twenty years.  He stated that in terms of the dollar figure, $12,000,000 is a compilation of both 

 operating and capital.  He stated that the water is $3,000,000 and the sewer is $7,250,000. 

 

 Mr. Young stated that they kind of combined the sewer and water into one public hearing.  He 

 asked if there was anyone who wants to speak on either the water or the sewer.  He asked if the 

 Board had a problem with combining the two.  The Board members indicated that they did not. 

 Mr. Quinn asked that the Board make a motion to open the public hearing for the water. 

 

 Mr. Cash made a motion to open the public hearing for the Southwest Water Improvements  

 Proposed Special Assessment District.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 

 

  Motion approved. 

 

 For all the public that has spoken Mr. Quinn asked if it was safe to say that any comments made 

 regarding the sewer should also be made toward the water part of the SAD.  Mr. Quinn stated 

 if not, they should come forward and state this otherwise the comments will be applied to both. 

 No one came forward, therefore, Mr. Young stated that they will make the assumption that the 

 comments are for both. 

 

 Mr. Olson noted that they have a pre-engineering situation that may be part of this SAD.  He stated 

 that there is a group that has agreed to pre-engineer their portion with the idea that will get them 

 farther along in the process.  He stated that there is an obligation and a contract that the  

 applicant would prefer to see the roll set by April 1, 2005, so that they can do their development in 

 that area.  He stated that if these public hearings are held over until the March meeting, he is not 

 sure if this will have an adverse affect on the schedule.   

 

 Mr. Quinn stated that by holding this open, it will not adversely impact this.  He stated that at the 

 March meeting the Board would do the resolution that was to be considered tonight and would 

 then schedule the hearing on the roll for April.  He stated that they would still be looking at an 

 April conclusion to confirming the roll. 

 

 If they had to truncate the project and dollar figures changed and was shortened up, Mr. Olson 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 6 
 

questioned what would happen at that point.  He questioned if they would have to start the whole 

process over with a smaller district.  Mr. Quinn responded that they would have to re-start the  

process.  He stated that they would have to go back and do an amended first resolution before  

they could get to where they are tonight. 

 

David Goldberg, Aspen Group, stated that the contractual agreement could certainly be  

amended, if necessary.  He stated that the process needs to be done right and did not feel that 

thirty days would jeopardize it. 

 

Todd Wyett indicated that the thirty days would not be a problem. 

 

Ms. Carcone questioned if this is one of the ones that there would be a one and two.  She 

questioned if all the Township sewer fees are going back into the project.  Mr. Quinn responded 

that they are not.  He stated that there is going to be a one and two. 

 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to leave the public hearing for the Southwest Sewer Improvements 

Proposed Special Assessment District open until the March 7, 2005 meeting.  Mr. Cash supported 

the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
 b.  Public Hearing for the Southwest Water Main Improvements Proposed Special Assessment 

      District 

 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to leave the public hearing for the Southwest Water Main 

Improvements Proposed Special Assessment District open until the March 7, 2005 meeting.   

Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 

 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to re-convene the regular meeting.  Mr. Hemker supported the  

motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
 a.  Resolution Determining Necessity of Improvements and Designating Special Assessment District 

      for the Southwest Water Main Improvement Special Assessment District 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to table the Resolution Determining Necessity of Improvements and 

Designating Special Assessment District for the Southwest Water Main Improvement Special  

Assessment District until the March 7, 2005 meeting.  Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 7 
 

 

  Motion approved. 

 
 b.  Resolution Determining Necessity of Improvements and Designating Special Assessment District 

      for the Southwest Sanitary Sewer Improvement Special Assessment District 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to table the Resolution Determining Necessity of Improvements and 

Designating Special Assessment District for the Southwest Sanitary Sewer Improvement Special  

Assessment District until the March 7, 2005 meeting.  Mr.  Hicks supported the motion. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 

 

  Motion approved. 

 
c.  Bond Resolution, Special Assessment Bonds Series 2005-A, regarding West Pontiac Trail Water 

     Improvements Special Assessment District 

 

 Mr. Quinn explained that presented to the Board by Bond Counsel is a Bond Resolution for Special 

 Assessment Bond Series 2005-A for the West Pontiac Trail Water Improvements Special Assessment 

 District in the amount of $1,769,732.88.  He stated that with the adoption of this Bond Resolution it 

 authorizes the bond process to continue.  He stated that at the March meeting there will be bids 

 opened for the sales of these bonds.  He stated that this resolution is in a proper form for the Board’s 

 consideration this evening.   

 

 Mr. Cash moved by resolution to approve the Special Assessment Bond Series 2005-A regarding the 

 West Pontiac Trail Water Improvements Special Assessment District in the amount of $1,769,732.88. 

 Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Carcone, Cash, Hemker, Schilling, Hicks, Johnson, Young 

    Nays: Nope 

  

 Motion approved. 

 
d.  Bond Resolution, General Obligation Bonds Series 2005-A, regarding West Pontiac Trail Water 

     and Sanitary Sewer Special Assessment Districts 

 

Mr. Quinn explained that this is a General Obligation Bond for Series 2005-A which also pertains to 

the West Pontiac Trail Water Improvement Special Assessment District and the West Pontiac Trail 

Sanitary Sewer Special Assessment District.  The Township agreed that as part of the two districts 

the Township would fund the amount of $650,000.00 toward the construction of these.  He stated 

that this resolution authorizes that General Obligation Bond will follow the same process as was 

just discussed.  He stated that the amount of $650,000 will be covered by installment payment 

agreements of the utilities, which will be the money flow coming in to cover the $650,000 as it is 

being paid out over the term of the bond.  He stated that this resolution is in a proper form for the 

Board’s consideration this evening.  

 

Ms. Carcone moved to resolve the General Obligation Bonds Series 2005-A regarding the West 

Pontiac Trail Water and Sanitary Sewer Special Assessment Districts.  Mr. Cash supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were an comments.  Ms. Carcone asked Mr. Quinn if these are a one and 

a two.  Mr. Quinn responded that they are and explained to the Board what is meant by a one and 

a two. 

 

Mr. Hemker questioned why this is done with a General Obligation Bond rather than a special 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 8 
 

assessment.  Ms. Carcone responded that it has to be something that is tangible and a REU fee or 

sewer fee is not like sewer lines in the ground.  She stated that if they are actually paying for lines 

then it can be included in a special assessment district. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Johnson, Hicks, Schilling, Carcone, Cash, Young, Hemker 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
e.  Reconsideration of Acceptance of Donation Documents for Woodwind Well (Tabled from  

     November & December) Possible Action to Postpone, Developer and School Preparing  

     Proposed Contract 

 

Mr. Young stated that this issue has been tabled at the last two meetings.  He stated that it is his 

understanding that it should be tabled again until next month’s meeting.  Mr. Olson stated that 

they did receive notification from Mr. Harris’ Attorney indicating that they still had some work to 

do on the contracts and that they were not ready to bring this forward to the Board at this time. 

 

Mr. Cash made a motion to table the Woodwind Well donation documents until March 7, 2004. 

Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
f.  Impervious Surface Standards – Second Reading and Proposed Adoption of Text Amendment 

    to Zoning Ordinance (Tabled from December) Possible Action to Postpone 

 

Mr. Doozan explained that this was tabled at the December meeting because of the Board’s  

concern of what this would do in the B-1 district.  He stated that what he is recommending tonight 

is that they remove B-1 district from the consideration and leave it as it is now.  He stated that he 

feels that there is a more comprehensive point of view that needs to be taken with respect to the 

New Hudson area.  He stated that he has distributed a draft of the Town Center overlay district that 

will be given to the Planning Commission at their next meeting. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that where they left this procedurally was that it came up for a first reading but  

was tabled.  Mr. Doozan stated that this is correct.  Mr. Quinn stated that if there was a motion to 

approve this, it would be to approve the first reading.  He stated that it would then be published  

and then come back to the Board for a second reading in March. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 

 

Mr. Cash made a motion to approve the first reading of the Impervious Surface Standards. 

Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if the Board had any comments regarding this.  Mr. Hicks stated that he did a lot 

of research on the internet regarding this issue and briefly discussed what he found.  

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
g.  Elkow Farms Planned Development Architectural Guidelines – Reconsideration of Previous  



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 9 
 

     Approval regarding Roof Pitches 

 

Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 

January 14, 2005 regarding this issue. 

 

Rick Elkow apologized for being back in front of the Board so soon.  He stated that they were so 

focused on the square footage of the homes at the last meeting.  He stated that through their 

presentations they were intending on a 6/12 pitch roof and never anything larger.  He stated that 

a 10/12 roof pitch is very steep and something that he cannot live with.  He stated that he feels that 

6/12 is reasonable and allows flexibility in home styles. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments regarding this.  There were none. 

 

Mr. Hicks made a motion to modify the Architectural Standards for the Elkow Farms Planned 

Development to allow a minimum of a 6/12 roof pitch.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked the Board if they had any comments.  Mr. Hemker stated that there were a lot 

of loose ends the last time this came through.  He questioned if everything has been taken care 

of yet.  Mr. Doozan responded that everything has been addressed. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 a.  Asbury Hill Villas and Village Condominium Documents Approval – South side of Grand River 

      Avenue, east of Kent Lake Road 

 

Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 

January 14, 2005 regarding this issue. 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to approve the Asbury Hill Villas and Village Condominium Documents. 

Mr. Cash supported the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All   

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 
 

b.  Special Event Request for Lyon Township Park 

  

Dan Reynolds, Project 311, explained the special event that they are proposing to put on in the 

Lyon Township Park.  He stated that they have done an event mostly in Michigan called Blitzfest. 

He stated that they have been doing concerts and special events for youths for awhile.  He  

stated that there were 2,000 people at the last Blitzfest that they held in Birch Run.   

 

Mr. Reynolds stated that they expect to have 4,000 people, 75 bands, 7 stages, several blow-up 

games, skate park and sporting events.  He stated that the event will begin Friday night and go 

all day Saturday.  He stated that they have addressed a lot of issues in the documents that were 

submitted to the Board. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road,  

questioned the types of concerts that would be held and the age group of the attendees. 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 10 
 

Mr. Reynolds responded that this will primarily be targeted toward youth, but there will be 

activities for the whole family.  The primary music will be for students a little younger than  

Junior High all the way through College.  

 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to allow the special event for the Blitzfest for the dated for June 3 and 

4, 2005.  Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if the Board had any comments.  Mr. Hemker questioned where they have held 

Blitzfest in the past.  Mr. Reynolds responded that last year they held it in Birch Run at the Birch Run 

Expo Center.  He stated that the year prior they did it in White Lake Township on the property of a 

church on M-59.  Mr. Hemker questioned if they moved it every year to get different people to 

attend.  Mr. Reynolds responded that they have moved it every year because of the different  

people he has worked with.  Mr. Hemker questioned how late this would run.  Mr. Reynolds  

responded that they usually were allowed to run until 10:00 or 11:00 PM depending upon the 

City or Township they were in.  He stated that they will abide by whatever time the Board sets. 

 

Ms. Carcone stated that Mr. Reynolds will be working with Steve Lackey, South Lyon Area 

Recreation Director.  She stated that they want to get the youth off the street by having an 

event for them.  She stated that there have been four events in the past that have been very 

successful.  She stated that they have a no tolerance policy. 

 

Mr. Hicks questioned if there would be food concessions at this event.  Mr. Reynolds responded that 

there would be.  Mr. Young questioned what type of music will be played.  Mr. Reynolds responded 

that there will be every style music.  He noted that there will be a lot of music geared more toward 

the teens.  He stated that they carefully screen every musician or band that is playing for language 

and acts.  He stated that they would never use any band that would be offensive to anybody. 

 

Mr. Hicks questioned if fees are paid or if anybody has required a percentage.  Mr. Reynolds  

responded that they have a $90,000 budget for this event.  He stated that they pay whatever fee 

is required by the municipality for the use of the property. 

 

Ms. Carcone stated that any restoration that needs to be done must be done to the Township’s 

specifications.  She stated that she would like to see the applicant provide a performance bond 

to make sure that everything is done right when the event is over.  Mr. Reynolds stated that this  

would not be a problem.   

 

Ms. Carcone questioned what type of security will be provided.  Mr. Reynolds responded they  

usually always end up having to hire one or two police to direct traffic.  He stated that they would 

do whatever is required by the Township.  He stated that additionally they usually hire a professional 

security company to help with the security. 

 

Chris Roberts, 56645 McKenzi Lane, stated that he felt that $1,000,000 liability is not enough.  He  

noted that he has $3,000,000 coverage on his property and house.   

 

Ms. Johnson questioned if they intend on bringing in generators.  Mr. Reynolds responded that they 

will be bringing in lots of generators.  Ms. Johnson stated that a few years ago they had a problem 

with spilled fuel at an event.  She stated that she just wanted to make the applicant aware of this 

because they would not like to see a repeat situation.  Mr. Reynolds stated that they will be hiring 

out all these types of things.   

 

Mr. Reynolds stated that all of the volunteers will be wearing the same T-shirt and have badges.  He 

stated that with regard to the insurance, the $1,000,000 is just a minimum that they put down, but  

they are definitely willing to carry the amount of liability insurance that the Township requires. 

 

Ms. Carcone stated that she wants to make sure that the applicant is aware that the park is on a 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 11 
 

landfill and the surface can only be punctured so deep.  Mr. Olson stated that the depth varies  

throughout the park, but most of it is 18” to 2’. 

 

Mr. Olson indicated that there are ball diamonds and a play area in one section of the park.  He 

suggested that the applicant may want to contain their event to the northwest section of the park. 

He stated that with regard to the bands, he would suggest that the amplifiers be faced toward the 

freeway. 

 

Ms. Carcone asked Mr. Reynolds if he has spoken to any of the neighbors abutting the park.   

Mr. Reynolds responded that he has not yet.  Ms. Carcone suggested that he does so that they  

know what is going on.   

 

Mr. Young summarized some of the issues that they discussed.  Mr. Quinn stated that the Board  

could give preliminary approval of this event.  He stated that Mr. Reynolds could them come back 

to the Board’s next meeting with a layout of the site, where the parking is going to be to handle 

this many vehicles and the traffic flow to get to the site.  He stated that the Township could 

possibly close the park for that week-end so that Blitzfest is the only event at the park.  He stated 

that Mr. Reynolds should have a meeting with the Sheriff’s Department to discuss the traffic flow 

and parking. 

 

Mr. Quinn noted that there are no lights in the park and that everyone would have to be gone 

from the park by dusk when it closes.  Mr. Reynolds stated that they would probably rent lights, if 

the Township agrees so that the closing time could be extended. 

 

Mr. Hicks noted that the applicant needs to be aware of the locations of the gas wells when they 

do their layout.   

 

Ms. Carcone amended her motion to give preliminary approval of this special event.  Mr. Schilling 

supported the amended motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
c.  PD Ordinance – Possible Appointment of a Sub-committee 

 

Mr. Young explained that the Planning Commission has appointed a committee for this issue and 

would like the Board to also appoint a committee so that they can meet to discuss the PD  

Ordinance.  Lannie Young, John Hicks and Troy Schilling volunteered to serve on this committee. 

 

Chris Roberts, 56645 McKenzi Lane, stated that he has been watching the PD Ordinance which 

started off really strong but somewhere along the way it started to get developer friendly.  He  

stated that he hopes the Board members on the committee will work strongly with the Planning 

Commission committee members.  He stated that he is going to be watching this one.  He stated 

that he is not anti-development and wants the community to be fair to the developers. 

 

Mr. Cash questioned if they could appoint a citizen to the committee.  Mr. Doozan responded that 

they could.  There was discussion about a citizen that could serve on the committee.  Chris Roberts 

stated that he would be happy to serve on the committee.  Mr. Olson noted that Mr. Roberts’ wife, 

Laura Williams, serves on the Planning Commission and noted that she is on the committee.  After 

discussion, it was determined that Darcy Hollon would serve on this committee.   

 

Mr. Olson stated that there may be a possibility that someone from the development community 

will want to serve on the committee.  He suggested that they set a certain number for members of 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 12 
 

the committee so that it doesn’t get out of hand.  Mr. Young stated that there are three Board 

members, three Planning Commission members and one citizen now.  He stated that if one 

developer that is developing in the community is interested in serving, it would probably be wise. 

 
 d.  Bike Path/Sidewalk Proposed Ordinance Revisions 

  

Mr. Olson reviewed the comments in his memorandum dated February 2, 2005 regarding this issue. 

 He noted that he has several concerns with regard to these proposed revisions, which he has  

 indicated in the margins.  He stated that he feels that they should hold off on approving this so  

 that further work can be done on it. 

 

 Mr. Doozan briefly summarized some of the discussion that was held at the Planning Commission 

 meeting regarding these revisions.  He briefly discussed the constructions standards that are  

 indicated on page two. 

 

 Ms. Carcone stated that she and Chris Doozan have been on the Trail Committee for 8 years.   

 She stated that they originally designed the trail for 12’ wide paths for passability and safety. 

 She stated that she does not see 8’ wide paths as being feasible.  She noted that if they want to 

 get Grants for the trail system, they have to follow ASHTO criteria. 

 

 Mr. Quinn stated that Ms. Carcone’s comments all deal with Section 4.01, Construction Standards, 

 but within the ordinance there are other sections that are being proposed to be modified.  He 

 stated that the Board may want to consider adopting some of these, if their hang-up is only on the 

 construction standards.  Mr. Olson stated that it is more than just the construction standards that  

 there are problems with.   

 

 Mr. Olson discussed Item 2 on Page 1, the cost of completing the bicycle path or sidewalk in a road 

 segment.  He stated that he would have to question the definition of a road segment.  He  

discussed the comment relating to the assessment to each parcel.  He stated that this is a real 

handcuff on the Board to complete something.  He felt that it may not be a reasonable limitation  

to get a path done with the way that it is stated.  He stated that he does not feel that this is  

something that the Board should limit themselves to. 

 

Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, stated that she has spoken with a couple of the Planning 

Commission members regarding this.  She stated that the 8’ wide path is intended for areas that 

are mostly developed.  She stated that to put a 10’ wide bicycle path in front of her house or  

Jim Hamilton’s house would be very difficult and a hardship on them, because it would take up 

too much of their front yard.  Mr. Doozan indicated that there are provisions for this type of  

situation indicated on page 2 that would address this. 

 

Mr. Cash questioned what requirement would large lots on private roads have.  Mr. Olson stated 

that he does not believe that they have anything regarding private roads.  Mr. Doozan stated 

that it would fall under subdivisions and site condominiums.   

 

Mr. Hemker stated that when he was on the Planning Commission this subject came up from a 

few members all the time.  He stated that he does not feel that they had all the information.  He 

indicated that the comments made by Ms. Carcone is the first time he has heard any of those 

arguments.  He stated that maybe they should send it back to the Planning Commission with the 

comments made by Ms. Carcone and Mr. Olson and have them re-look at it. 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to refer the Bike Path/Sidewalk Proposed Ordinance Revisions back 

to the Planning Commission for further discussion.  Mr. Cash supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Mr. Olson stated that maybe him and Ms. Carcone 

could be at the next conference committee.  Mr. Young felt that this would be a good idea. 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 13 
 

 

Chris Roberts, 56645 McKenzi Lane, stated that the Planning Commission struggled with this issue. 

He stated that primarily the concept of restricting some of the money assessed against the  

property is for people that have been living here for a very long time and then all of a sudden 

they have a bike path thrown at them.  He stated that they would be incurring a rather large  

expense, if they owned a large parcel.  He stated that this was the intent of the assessment. 

Mr. Olson noted that it does not say that. 

 

Ms. Carcone stated that they do have funds available for the path.  She stated that the funds 

could be used if it proves to be a hardship on somebody.   

 

Mr. Hicks questioned if the bike path is required along Martindale Road.  Ms. Carcone responded 

that it is.  Mr. Olson noted that pretty much all the major routes have the path. 

 

Robin Allen, 28550 Tindale Trail, stated that a comment was made earlier with respect to vehicles 

driving down the path.  He noted that this has been an ongoing problem.  He stated that he has 

asked a couple times if steel posts could be put up.  Ms. Carcone stated that they just received a 

$25,000 Grant to help with engineering.  She indicated that they will be looking into this.  Mr. Cash  

noted that need to keep in mind when checking into this that some bikers have a tag-along  

trailer with kids in it.  He stated that they need to make sure that the posts are placed far enough 

apart for these to pass through. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 

 

Mr. Olson requested that item e and f be reversed so that the Board discusses item f before item e. 

 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to reverse the order of item e and f.  Mr. Schilling supported the 

motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
f.  Kettle Lake Private Road Access 

 

Mr. Olson reviewed the comments indicated in his memorandum dated February 2, 2005 regarding 

this issue.  He requested that the Board order access but without prescribing the financial  

parameters because this is something that needs to be worked out between the two parties. 

 

Dave Backus stated that he has been working on this issue for about three years now and there still 

is not any resolution.  He stated that he needs to move his project along and would like to exercise 

his right for what the ordinance allows him.  He stated that he feels that he has offered a very fair 

settlement. 

 

Mr. Olson stated that Mr. Backus does have to pay his fair share because that is the way that the  

ordinance works.  He stated that the dispute is over who gets what amount.  He stated that in the 

meantime the Township has refused to process Mr. Backus’ lot splits that he would like to do  

because he does not have access.  He asked Mr. Quinn if there is anything more on the legal end 

of this.  Mr. Quinn responded that there is not.  He stated that it has been a while since he has seen 

the packet of information on this, but recalls seeing a signed easement agreement by Mr. Young 

that contains paragraph 5, which says that if required the Township can allow existing abutting 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 14 
 

properties to have access to the easement for ingress and egress.  He stated that this would have  

to be put in a recordable document so the Board would have to adopt a resolution and make a 

motion that would allow Mr. Backus’ property ID number to have access to Kettle Lake Drive  

private road pursuant to the road easement agreement of 1999.  He stated that the resolution  

would then be recorded and then Mr. Backus could use that as a recordable document that  

grants him access to the easement.  He stated that this may not end the dilemma.  He stated  

that this is how he would recommend that this issue be handled. 

 

Mr. Olson stated that it appears that Mr. Young never recorded the easement that was originated  

in 1999.  He stated that Mr. Young had to have this before the Township would approve a private 

road. 

 

Mr. Hicks made a motion to authorize Legal Counsel to draft a resolution for this issue and bring it 

back to the Board at the March 7, 2005 meeting.  Mr. Cash supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Mr. Hicks stated that things like this make him  

wonder why they still do private roads.  Mr. Young stated that it would be nice if the two parties 

could get this straightened out on their own.  Ms. Carcone questioned if the cost of the resolution 

is coming out of the Township’s pocket.  She stated that she feels that the Township should be 

reimbursed for this because it is not the Township’s fault. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Carcone, Hemker, Schilling, Cash, Hicks 

    Nays: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 

The Board took a five minute recess. 

 
 e.  Employee Wages for 2005 

  

Mr. Olson reviewed the comments indicated in his memorandum dated February 3, 2005 regarding 

this issue.  He reviewed the criteria that was looked at in compiling the information that is presented 

to the Board tonight. 

 

Mr. Hicks made a motion to approve the following increases for 2005, being retroactive to January 

1, 2005: 

 - Full time Employees 

  - Deputy Clerk, Planning Commission Secretary, Receptionist and  

    Maintenance Person  will be at an annual salary of $32,000 

  - Fire Chief annual salary to be $56,000 

 - Building Department 

  - Building Official annual salary to be $57,500 

  - Building Coordinator annual salary to be $39,100 

  - Building Inspector annual salary to be $46,300 

  - Contact Inspector salary would be $30.00 per inspection 

  - Assistant Building Coordinator salary to be $32,000 

 - Part time Positions 

  - Deputy Treasurer hourly wage to be $18.00 

  - Assistant Deputy Treasurer hourly wage to be $15.00 

  - Zoning Enforcement Officer hourly wage to be $18.00 

 - Firefighters 

  - Duty Day people hourly wage to be $15.37 

  - Training Days hourly wage to be $15.97 

  - Runs hourly wage to be $15.97 

    There is a caveat that this was based up to 3%.  There are a couple unbilled 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 15 
 

    positions that may not, when they are billed, come up to these figures, 

    it may be somewhat less. 

 - Superintendent annual salary to be set at $87,000 with annual auto expense at $5,300 

This information is based on information received from several different sources and these are not 

to be construed as starting wages, they are for experienced, self-starting employees who do their 

job with no constant supervision.  Mr. Cash supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Mr. Olson asked for clarification with regard to the 

Firefighters Duty Day, Training Days and Runs.  He stated that he compiled averages that are 

indicated on the spreadsheet.  He questioned if Mr. Hicks wanted the numbers to clarify the officers 

pay in his motion.  Mr. Hicks responded that this is something that was discussed and this is one of 

the reasons that he included the up to 3% so that it would allow some discretion for those positions. 

 

Mr. Cash stated that the Duty Day rate is currently at $11.93.  He stated that for the projection  

everything was kind of lumped together.  He stated that with a 3% increase for the Duty Day it  

would go up to $12.29.  Mr. Olson noted that this would be for a 10 hour shift.  He stated that he 

wanted to make sure that it is understood that the Duty Day rate is not $15.97, it is $12.29. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that with regard to a situation that they had last year, he remembers that any 

contract party with the Township cannot be given a retroactive fees.  He stated that the  

contracted inspector fees would have to begin tomorrow, if this motion is adopted.  He asked  

Mr. Phillips if the Zoning Officer is under contract.  Mr. Phillips responded that the Zoning Officer 

is a part time employee of the Township.  Mr. Quinn stated that with respect to the Superintendent, 

his recollection would be that he is included in the category that could not have a retroactive pay 

increase, therefore, his would be effective tomorrow.  Mr. Olson stated that he is an employee. 

Mr. Quinn stated that Mr. Olson is the Chief Operating Officer. 

 

Ms. Carcone stated that she actually only wants to see a 9% raise for the Deputy Clerk, Planning 

Commission Secretary, Receptionist, Maintenance, Fire Chief and Chris Olson’s salary and auto 

allowance.  She stated that this is what she would like to see.  She stated that she has a real  

problem with Richard’s (Maintenance) hours and cannot support a raise for him unless they can  

give him hours that are more conducive for the Township.  She stated to have a Maintenance 

person come in a 6:00 AM and leave at 1:00 and takes his lunch hour at the end of the day, that 

leaves the Township without an Maintenance person from 1:00 PM on.  She stated that his hours 

were never expanded to 8:30 AM to 5:00 PM like the rest of the employees that was required by 

the Township Board.  She stated that she would like to see Richard’s hours the same as everybody 

else.  Ms. Johnson concurred with Ms. Carcone’s comments. 

 

Mr. Young stated that they heard the comments but felt that Richard’s hours are not on the table 

right now.  Ms. Carcone stated that they are to her.  She stated that they cannot be without a 

Maintenance person for most of the day.  She also indicated that nobody else is allowed to take 

their lunch at the end of the day and feels that Richard should not be allowed to either. 

 

Mr. Hicks clarified his motion.  He stated that his motion only covers wages and that hours are a 

secondary issue. 

 

Mr. Hemker stated that all he has been hearing for the past eight or nine years is that the Board is 

trying to get to the averages for everybody from other communities.  He stated that a couple 

problems with the average is that there could be something thrown in there that may skew the 

average too high or too low for that particular month.  He stated that looking at just the salary, it 

does not take into account the entire benefit package that somebody gets.  He felt that all of this 

needs to be looked at.   

 

Mr. Hemker stated that at the bottom of the agenda under “Future Agenda Items” it indicates that 

“Personnel Manual”.  He stated that he feels that they need a Personnel Manual with job  



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 16 
 

descriptions and reviews.  He stated that everybody is hired in at a current level and that he  

doesn’t see anybody walking out the door saying that if they don’t get a 9% raise they are gone. 

He stated that at this point to get things going since they are behind already, they should give a  

cost of living increase over last year for 2005 and then get working on the Personnel Manual with 

job descriptions and a review process.  He felt that the review committee should be comprised of 

people who are here all the time, i.e., Patty, Pam and Chris.  He felt that Lannie Young, as  

Supervisor, should be a mediator to move the committee along.  He felt that they should give  

raises based on merit and what people are actually doing and not trying to grasp at an average. 

He stated that they really don’t know what a person in another municipality is doing versus what 

our employee is doing. 

 

Mr. Hicks stated that he believed that Mr. Olson did address this in his documentation to the extent 

that he felt that people should be brought in with some kind of average before implementing. 

Mr. Hemker stated that he does not understand why they have to be at this hypothetical average 

before we implement a review system.  He felt that a review system needs to be in place first.  He 

stated that sometime in the future it is going to come back and affect the Township’s budget. 

 

Mr. Hemker briefly discussed ads that are in a planning magazine that he still gets.  He stated that 

the ads indicate that pay is commensurate on education, training and experience.  He stated that 

it does not indicate that top pay will be paid upon employment.  He noted that the ads usually 

give a broad range, some of them with $20,000 in the swing.  He stated that he does not feel that 

they can just throw out an average and grasp at it without setting up personnel job descriptions 

and a review process. 

 

Mr. Olson briefly discussed the benefits that employees get.  He stated that the 457 Plan is in lieu of 

Social Security.  Mr. Hemker stated that he still views this as a benefit.  Mr. Olson stated that the  

other aspects, in terms of benefits, are medical benefits are roughly the same as other communities. 

He stated that a number of local communities provide extra benefits at certain levels. 

 

Mr. Hicks stated that his figures were based on information from Mr. Olson and the MTA.  He stated 

that all these numbers are for positions and have nothing to do with the people who are currently in 

these positions. 

 

Mr. Young stated that he does agree with Mr. Hemker in the fact that they do need a review  

process.  He noted that they have been talking about this for a long time.  He felt that after the 

discussion this evening, it will provide the impetus to get moving on this.  He stated that he is  

concerned about is that every year that goes by that they don’t make an attempt to get close to 

the average, they may get into a situation where the employees will need to be caught up.  He 

stated that he is not sure what the numbers should be but they have to keep their employees in 

the market with like forces in the other communities.  He stated that there has been a lot of work 

done on this, but obviously there still needs to be more.  He stated that he is not for just giving a 

cost of living raise this year, but felt that they employees do need something to move them up to 

a mid-point.  He felt that they need to put forth the effort this year to put together a review system 

so that they don’t get into a situation like this again next year. 

 

Mr. Olson stated that the market self-corrects itself.  He stated that averages happen not by 

consciously going out and doing it, but by the market itself.  He felt that there is a credibility 

situation that also relates to the market.  He further discussed the market.  He stated that he feels 

that they have a unique opportunity now to establish a consensus.  He noted that it will take time  

and it will take more than just one meeting a month.  He felt that they will need extra meetings to 

accomplish this goal. 

 

Mr. Olson stated that Mr. Quinn did write an opinion in a prior year regarding his situation.  Mr. Quinn 

stated that he does not recall what it says, and will have to research it.  Mr. Olson stated that he 

does not recall be bound the same as an elected official.  Mr. Quinn stated that Mr. Olson is under 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 17 
 

a contract which is being amended.  He stated that he is not saying that pay can or can’t be 

retroactive, he is saying that he will have to look into it. 

 

Mr. Hicks amended his motion to take the retroactive aspect out of the original motion and made 

the salary increases effective with the next pay period. 

 

Mr. Cash stated that by not going retroactive, shame on the Board for not getting this done in 

December.  He stated that because the Board didn’t get this done, people are going to potentially 

lose a month’s worth of salary increase.  He felt that they should go retroactive.  Mr. Olson stated 

that he is sure that they would get employee consensus on the retroactive issue.    

 

Ms. Johnson questioned why this could not be done at budget time so that there is no retroactive 

situation.  Mr. Cash stated that if he had his way in doing this, this would be done in March after  

they received the audit from the Accountant so that they know exactly where they stand. 

Mr. Young stated that there is nothing that states that this has to be done in the beginning of the  

year.   

 

Ms. Carcone stated that she would like to see a sub-committee set up.  She stated that she does 

agree with Mr. Hemker’s comments and with Mr. Young’s comments.  She stated that the most 

important thing valuable is not to change your employees.  She stated that it is very costly to start 

all over again with new employees.  She feels that they have to have an evaluation system.  She 

noted that she has no problem serving on a committee for this.   

 

Mr. Young supported Mr. Hicks amendment to the motion regarding retroactive pay. 

 

Ms. Carcone made the following subsidiary motion: 

- to have a cap at 9% for the Deputy Clerk, Receptionist, Planning Secretary, Maintenance  

  and Fire Chief.  This would include the Superintendent’s pay and auto allowance. 

- A 3% raise for Building Official, Building Coordinator and Building Inspector. 

- Deputy Treasurer - $18.00 per hour 

- Assistant Deputy Treasurer - $15.00 per hour  

- Code Enforcement will be at $18.00 per hour 

- Duty Day - $12.29 per hour 

- Training Day -  $15.97 per hour 

- Fire Runs - $15.97 per hour 

These raises will be retroactive, where allowed by law, to January 1, 2005. 

 Ms. Johnson supported the motion. 

 

 Mr. Hicks questioned if this was an amendment to his motion.  Mr. Young stated that this is a  

 subsidiary motion.  He stated that they will vote on this motion first and if it passes, then Mr. Hicks 

 motion will become moot. 

 

 Mr. Young asked if there are any questions regarding the subsidiary motion.  Mr. Cash stated that  

 if they are going to limit the cap at 9%, then it should be across the board for all employees.  He 

 stated that if they are going to go 9%, then it should apply to everyone.   

 

 Mr. Cash mad a subsidiary motion that they should put the cap at 9% for all employees.  There was 

 no support for this motion. 

 

 Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  Shirley Baker, Stancrest, questioned what the 

 employees will expect next year.  She stated that it strikes her odd that the Deputy Treasurer will get 

 $18.00 per hour and a Firefighter out there pumping water on a burning building will only get $15.97 

 per hour.  Mr. Olson noted that this is just an average.  She felt that with the way that the economy  

 is now, 9% is too much. 

 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 18 
 

 Mr. Young stated that it sounds worse that what it really is when you are dealing with hourly 

 wages.  He stated that the Township is in an expansion situation right now.  He stated that they 

 need to hire some people.  The work flow is so much right now that the folks in the office are 

 getting to a point where they can’t handle all of it in eight or ten hours.  He stated that as they 

 have been getting more special assessment districts, do they run out and hire more people or 

 do they ask more of their employees.  He stated that they have been asking more of their 

 employees and feels that they should be rewarded for this.  He stated that he works for the 

 second largest corporation in the worlds and got a 1-1/2% raise two years in a row.  He stated that  

his 1-1/2% raise means a whole lot more money than the 15% raise for the person making $11.00 

per hour.  He stated that the percentage does kind of distort it.  He stated that it looks worse than 

what it really is.  He stated that the employees are doing a good job and that they need to take 

care of them. 

 

Mr. Young called for a roll call vote on Ms. Carcone’s subsidiary motion. 

 

  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Hicks, Carcone, Schilling, Young, Johnson 

     Nays: Cash, Hemker 

 

  Motion approved. 

 

 Mr. Young stated that because the disposed the secondary motion, which passed, it made the 

 original motion a moot point.  Mr. Quinn stated that this is correct. 

 

 Mr. Hicks made a motion to set the contracted inspectors fee at $30.00 per inspection. 

 Ms. Johnson supported the motion. 

 

 Mr. Young asked if there were any comments regarding the motion.  Mr. Hemker questioned if  

 the budget would support this.  Mr. Young stated that this figure was recommended by the  

 department head. 

 

 Mr. Hicks amended his motion to make this fee effective with the next pay period.  Ms. Johnson 

 noted that contracted employees are paid once a month and are a month behind.  Mr. Hicks 

 amended his motion to make this fee effective immediately.  Ms. Johnson supported the  

 amendment to the motion. 

 

  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Schilling, Carcone, Johnson, Hicks, Hemker, Cash 

     Nays: None 

 

  Motion approved. 

 

 Ms. Carcone requested that Richard’s hours be added to the agenda.  There was brief discussion 

 and it was determined that it would be discussed at the next meeting in conjunction with an issue 

 that Mr. Schilling requested to be added to the agenda. 

 
 h.  Planning Commission Liaison 

 

 Mr. Cash stated that his work hours have changed and he is now working the afternoon shift.  He 

 stated that he can get off maybe once or twice for the Board meetings but any  more than that 

 would be difficult. 

 

 Mr. Young made a motion to appoint John Hicks as the Planning Commission Liaison.  Ms. Carcone  

supported the motion. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       February 7, 2005      Page 19 
 

 

  Motion approved. 

 
i.  SEMCOG Delegate 

 

Mr. Young stated that John Hicks has volunteered to be a SEMCOG Delegate for the Township. 

 

Ms. Johnson made a motion to appoint John Hicks as Lyon Township’s Delegate to the SEMCOG. 

Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
11.  MISCELLANEOUS 

 

 Mr. Young stated that one last thing before they go into Executive Session is to see if there are  

 any volunteers to work on the policy manual.  Mr. Cash stated that the policy manual is  

 probably 80 to 90 percent done.  He stated that he found it in his files over the week-end and 

 will be happy to pass it along to the committee.  Mr. Schilling, Ms. Carcone and Mr. Hemker  

 stated that they would volunteer to be on the committee.  Mr. Young stated that he is  

 assuming that Mr. Olson should be part of this committee also. 

 

 John Bell stated that he has a copy of the policy manual and it is scanned into the computer, 

 so he can e-mail it to anybody that needs it. 

 

 Mr. Cash stated that he would like to see the retirement policy incorporated into the manual 

 also. 

 
12. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA FOR ACTION OR DISCUSSION   NONE 

 
13. EXECUTIVE SESSION REGARDING PROPERTY ACQUISITION 

 

Mr. Hicks made a motion to adjourn the regular meeting and go into an Executive Session. 

Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes:   All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved.  The meeting was adjourned at 10:34 PM 

 

The executive session was called to order at 10:35 PM. 

 

The executive session was closed and the regular meeting adjourned at 11:10 PM. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Deby Cothery 
 

Deby Cothery                                            Pamela Johnson    

Recording Secretary                                                      Clerk    


